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Rules 4.3A 

Appendix 4E 

 

Preliminary Final Report 

 
 

Name of entity 

 

  ATW Holdings Limited 
 
ACN   Reporting Period  Previous Corresponding Period 

  100 531 191  
 
 Year ended 30 June 2012   Year ended 30 June 2011 

 

Results for announcement to the market 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Revenues from continuing operations 
 

 
 
Down 

 
 

100% 

 
 
to 

$A’000 
 

0 

Loss from continuing operations after tax  Down 84% to (599) 
     
Loss for the year attributable to members  Down 41% to (599) 
  

Dividends (distributions)  Amount per security Franked amount per 
security  

 
Final and interim dividend  

 
None 

 
nil 

  

Record date for determining entitlements to the 
dividend  
 

 
N/A 
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OTHER APPENDIX 4E INFORMATION 

 

 

1. NTA backing 

 30 June 2012 30 June 2011 

Net tangible asset backing per ordinary share $(0.002) $0.002 

 

2. Earnings per share 

 30 June 2012 30 June 2011 

Earnings per share overall operations (basic) $(0.0042) $(0.0056) 

 

3. Dividends 

 

There were no dividends declared during the year and the directors do not recommend that any dividend be paid. 

 

4. Dividend reinvestment plans 

 

N/A. 

 

5. Details of entities over which control has been gained or lost during the period 

 

Nil 

 

6. Details of associates and joint ventures 

 
The carrying value of interests in associated entities is nil. 

 
7. Audit 

 
This report is based on accounts, which are in the process of being audited. 

 

8. Commentary on Results 

As previously announced to the market, on 20 December 2011, the Company signed: 

 

1. a Sale and Purchase Agreement to acquire 100% ownership of the issued capital of Fitgenes Pty Ltd (“Fitgenes Transaction”) for a 

consideration of the issue of 344,300,940 fully paid shares in the Company on the basis of 30 (thirty) new shares in the Company 

for each 1 (one) issued share in Fitgenes; and 
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2. a Share Sale Agreement with Siva Ananda Rajah S/O Retnam for the sale of the Company’s 49% equity interest in Medec 

International Pty Ltd (“Medec Transaction”) for a total consideration of between $114,500 and $199,500. The sale is subject to a 

number of conditions and the agreement is subject to approval by the Company’s shareholders in general meeting later in 2012 

(“EGM”). The agreement was amended on 1 April 2012 to provide for a single fixed payment of $50,000 in lieu of the previous 

Contingent Consideration. 

 

Both these transactions are scheduled to be put to shareholders for approval at the EGM. 

 

An Independent Experts’ Report, prepared by DMR Corporate Pty Ltd, on the proposed acquisition of Fitgenes, was released to the market 

on 10 November 2011. The report concluded that the proposed transaction was fair and reasonable to the shareholders of ATW Holdings 

Ltd. 

 

Following a ruling by the Australian Securities Exchange (“ASX”) that the Fitgenes Transaction will require the Company to re-comply with 

Chapters 1 and 2 of the Listing Rules, Fitgenes and the Company agreed to proceed with this re-compliance process and jointly put in place 

an implementation programme.  Key elements of this are: 

 

 The chair of Fitgenes has joined the board of the Company. 

 The Company has concluded an Entitlement Offer, announced on 25 May 2012, to raise approximately $141,815.  51 

shareholders contributed $48,929.  The underwriter initially agreed to provide the entire shortfall of $92,885.16. 

 A sequence of unforeseen adverse circumstances subsequently made it impossible for the underwriter to honour this commitment. 

 Post-balance date, on 28 September 2012, ATW concluded an agreement with Fitgenes to place the entire shortfall with Fitgenes.  

This placement has now been executed. 

 Fitgenes is in the process of completing a capital raising of $275,000. 

 The Company will conduct the EGM to secure shareholder approval for the two transactions, for consolidation of its capital and to 

otherwise clear all other requirements to allow it to raise at least $2.5 million. 

 Fitgenes to fund, by way of a non-recourse loan to the Company, the costs of re-compliance (projected to be approximately 

$250,000). 

 The Company to complete a full-form prospectus including Investigating Accountant’s Report, Independent Expert’s Report and 

legal guidance and review/sign-off. 

 A revised Independent Expert’s Report has been completed in relation to both the Fitgenes Transaction and the Medec 

Transaction.  This again concluded that both transactions are fair and reasonable to the shareholders of ATW Holdings Ltd. 

 The Company, in collaboration with Fitgenes, to raise sufficient capital from enough separate shareholders to meet all the re-

compliance requirements, including net assets, shareholder spread and working capital, at a share price of at least $0.20. 
 

Much of the activity in the last six months of the reporting period has been directed at raising the capital needed to fund the re-compliance 

activities.  Considerable effort went into the preparation of the Fitgenes Information Memorandum and the Entitlement Offer documentation. 

 

There has been no significant change in the state of affairs of the Company during the year excepting that disclosed in the Review of 

Activities above. 

 

 

Sign here: ………………………………………….Date:         10 October 2012 

(Director) 

 

Print name:  Conrad Crisafulli 
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CORPORATE INFORMATION 
 

This annual report covers the consolidated entity comprising 

ATW Holdings Ltd and controlled entities. 

The presentation currency is Australian dollars. 

 

 

DIRECTORS 

Conrad Crisafulli        Executive Chairman 

Ernest Boswarva 

Robert Mair  

 

COMPANY SECRETARY 

Ian E Gregory 

 

REGISTERED OFFICE 

C/- Cimetta & Assoc 

10 Bowman Street 

South Perth 

Western Australia 6151 

Tel: +61 (08) 9474 2047 

Fax: +61 (08) 9474 4886 

ACN: 100 531 191 

 

 

STOCK EXCHANGE 

The company’s shares are listed on the ASX Limited 

CODE:  ATW 

The company’s shares are listed on the Berlin-Bremen Stock  

Exchange TICKER SYMBOL: MZW 

GERMAN SECURITIES CODE NUMBER : 726156  

 

WEBSITE 

N/A    

SHARE REGISTER 

Security Transfer Registrars Pty Ltd 

770 Canning Highway 

Applecross WA 6153 

Tel:  (08) 9315 2333 (08) 9315 0933 

Fax: (08) 9315 2233 (08) 93152233 

e-mail:  registrar@securitytransfer.com.au 

 

AUDITORS  

BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd 

38 Station Street 

Subiaco  WA 6005 

 

BANKERS 

 Westpac Banking Corporation 

 109 St Georges Terrace 

 Perth WA  

 

 

SOLICITORS 

Cooper Legal 

Level 15, 251 Adelaide Terrace, 

Perth WA 6000 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
 
FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012 

      

  

Consolidated Group 

     Note  2012 2011  

       $ $  

          

Revenue     2  14 349  

Other income 2  - 972,859  

Employee benefits expense     (150,462) (102,310)  

Depreciation and amortisation expense    (806) (270)  

Consultancy fees      (142,560) (17,835)  

Insurance      (25,536) (23,664)  

Impairment of receivables    3  (20,000) (3,670,502)  

Impairment of other assets    - (374,153)  

Rent and occupancy costs    (6,754) (20,360)  

Legal fees      (65,619) -  

Foreign currency translation loss    - (20,974)  

Administrative expenses    (167,209) (290,686)  

Other expenses      (30,000) (217,948)  

Profit / (Loss) before income tax     (608,932) (3,765,494)  

          

Income tax (expense) / benefit    4  9,557 -  

Loss from continuing operations   (599,361) (3,765,494)  

Profit from discontinued operations  5  - 2,775,080  

Loss for the year    (599,361) (990,414)  

Profit / (Loss) is attributable to:      

Owners of ATW Holdings Limited   (599,361) (1,010,962)  

Non-controlling interests   - 20,548  

   (599,361) (990,414)  

      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The above consolidated statements of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
 
FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012 

 

       Consolidated Group 

     Note  2012 2011  

       $ $  

          

Profit / (Loss) for the year   (599,361) (990,414)  

      

Other comprehensive income      

Exchange differences on translation of foreign 

operations   - (218,415)  

Total other comprehensive loss   (599,361) (218,415)  

Total comprehensive loss   (599,361) (1,208,829)  

      

Total comprehensive loss for the year is 

attributable to:      

Owners of ATW Holdings Limited   (599,361) (1,150,549)  

Non-controlling interests   - (58,280)  

   (599,361) (1,208,829)  

      

Overall operations      

Basic and diluted loss per share (cents per share) 8  (0.42) (0.56)  

Loss from continuing operations      

Basic and diluted loss per share (cents per share) 8  (0.42) (2.08)  

Profit from Discontinued Operations      

Basic and diluted earnings per share (cents per 

share) 8  - 1.52  

      

      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The above consolidated statements of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2012 

   Note  Consolidated Group 

     2012 2011  

     $ $  

ASSETS       

CURRENT ASSETS       

Cash and cash equivalents 9  61,649 178,862  

Trade and other receivables 10  7,921 355,676  

Other current assets 16  17,709 7,900  

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS   87,279 542,438  

NON-CURRENT ASSETS       

Financial assets 13  - -  

Property, plant and equipment 14  1,344 2,150  

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS   1,344 2,150  

TOTAL ASSETS    88,623 544,588  

LIABILITIES      

CURRENT LIABILITIES       

Trade and other payables 17  308,467 155,514  

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES   308,467 155,514  

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES      

Deferred tax liabilities 18  - 9,557  

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES   - 9,557  

TOTAL LIABILITIES    308,467 165,071  

NET (LIABILITIES)/ ASSETS   (219,844) 379,517  

EQUITY      

Contributed equity  19  4,998,814 4,998,814  

Accumulated losses   (5,218,658) (4,619,297)  

TOTAL (DEFICIENCY)/ EQUITY   (219,844) 379,517  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012 

 

Contributed 

equity 

Accumulated 

Losses 

Foreign 

Currency 

Translation 

Reserve 

Non-

controlling 

Interest  Total 

   $ $    $ 

Consolidated 

Group    

 

   

Balance at 1 July 

2010  5,198,814 (3,608,335) 402,237 804,210  2,796,926 

        

Total comprehensive  

loss for the year  - (1,010,962) (139,587) (58,280)  (1,208,829) 

Sub-total  5,198,814 (4,619,297) 262,650 745,930  1,588,097 

Disposal of controlled 

entities  - - (262,650) (745,930)  (1,008,580) 

 

Shares cancelled  (200,000) - - - - (200,000) 

Dividends paid or  

provided for  - - - - - - 

Balance at 30 June 

2011  4,998,814 (4,619,297) - - - 379,517 

    
 

   

        

Total comprehensive  

loss for the year  - (599,361) - - - (599,361) 

Sub-total  4,998,814 (5,218,658) - - - (219,844) 

Dividends paid or  

provided for  - - - - - - 

Balance at 30 June 

2012  4,998,814 (5,218,658) - - - (219,844) 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 The above consolidated statements of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012 

 Note  Consolidated Group 

  

 2012 2011  

  $  

Cash Flows From Operating Activities 
 

    

Receipts from customers   1,186 9,581,694  

Payments to suppliers and employees   (612,913) (11,687,482)  

Interest received   14 14,537  

Interest paid   - (56,470)  

Income tax paid   - (57,159)  

Net cash flows provided by / (used in) operating 

activities 24a  (611,713) (2,204,880)  

Cash flows from Investing Activities 
 

    

Proceeds from sale of plant and equipment   - 5,626  

Purchase of property, plant and equipment   - (420,401)  

Loans (to)/from other related parties   (20,000) 1,998,975  

Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries   350,000 858,500  

Proceeds from deposit received on disposal of 

associated company 

 

 164,500 -  

Net cash disposed on sale of subsidiaries 
 

 - (1,035,630)  

Net cash flows provided by / (used in) investing 

activities 

 

 494,500 1,407,070  

Cash flows from Financing Activities 
 

    

Proceeds from borrowings   - 204,938  

Repayment of borrowings   - (123,110)  

Net cash flows provided by / (used in) financing 

activities   - 81,828  

Net increase/(decrease) in cash held 
 

 (117,213) (715,982)  

Effect of foreign exchange rates 
 

 - (71,886)  

Cash at beginning of financial period 
 

 178,862 966,730  

Cash at end of financial period 

 

9  61,649 178,862  

 

 

 

 

 

 

The above statements of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012 

 

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

This financial report includes the consolidated financial statements and notes of ATW Holdings Limited and controlled entities 

(‘Consolidated Group’ or ‘Group’).   

Basis of Preparation 

These financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in accordance with Australian 

Accounting Standards, Australian Accounting Interpretations, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting 

Standards Board (“AASB”) and the Corporations Act 2001. 

Australian Accounting Standards set out accounting policies that the AASB has concluded would result in financial statements 

containing relevant and reliable information about transactions, events and conditions. Compliance with Australian Accounting 

Standards ensures that the financial statements and notes also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards.  

Material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of this financial report are presented below and have been consistently 

applied unless otherwise stated. 

The financial report has been prepared on an accruals basis and is based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the 

measurement at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities. 

ATW Holdings Limited completed the disposal of Atos Wellness Pte Ltd, a company incorporated in Singapore during the 

comparative period.  Under the terms of Australian Accounting Standard AASB 3 Business Combinations, Atos Wellness Pte 

Ltd was deemed to be the accounting acquirer in the business combination prior to disposal and therefore had been accounted 

for as a reverse acquisition under AASB 3.  Accordingly, the financial statements of the Consolidated Group were prepared as a 

continuation of the consolidated financial statements of Atos Wellness Pte Ltd.  Following the sale of Atos Wellness Pte Ltd and 

its controlled entities on 21 April 2011, Atos Wellness Pte Ltd ceased to be the accounting acquirer of ATW Holdings Limited 

(formerly Atos Wellness Limited).  From this date, the financial statements of the Consolidated Group reflect a continuation of 

the existing consolidated financial statements and any previous adjustments resulting from the reverse acquisition accounting 

described above. 

a. Principles of Consolidation 

 A controlled entity is any entity over which ATW Holdings Limited has the power to govern the financial and operating 

policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities.  In assessing the power to govern, the existence and effect of holdings 

of actual and potential voting rights are considered. 

 A list of controlled entities is contained in Note 13 to the financial statements. 

 As at reporting date, the assets and liabilities of all controlled entities have been incorporated into the consolidated 

financial statements as well as their results for the year then ended.  Where controlled entities have entered (left) the 

consolidated group during the year, their operating results have been included (excluded) from the date control was 

obtained (ceased). 

 All inter-group balances and transactions between entities in the consolidated group, including any unrealised profits or 

losses, have been eliminated on consolidation. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary 

to ensure consistency with those adopted by the parent entity. 

 Non-controlling interests, being that portion of the profit or loss and net assets of subsidiaries attributable to equity 

interests held by persons outside the Group, are shown separately within the Equity section of the consolidated 

Statement of Financial Position and in the consolidated Statement of Comprehensive income. 

Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less impairment losses. 

(i) Business Combinations 

 Change in accounting policy 

 The Group has adopted revised AASB 3 Business Combinations (2008) and amended AASB 127 Consolidated and 

Separate Financial Statements (2008) for business combinations occurring in the financial year starting 1 July 2009.  All 

business combinations occurring on or after 1 July 2009 are accounted for by applying the acquisition method.  The 

change in accounting policy is applied prospectively and had no material impact on earnings per share. 

 For every business combination, the Group identifies the acquirer, which is the combining entity that obtains control of 

the other combining entities or businesses.  Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an 

entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.  In assessing control, the Group takes into consideration potential voting 

rights that currently are exercisable.  The acquisition date is the date on which control is transferred to the acquirer.  

Judgement is applied in determining the acquisition date and determining whether control is transferred from one party to 

another.    
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012 

(i) Business Combinations (cont’d) 

 Measuring goodwill 

 The Group measures goodwill as the fair value of the consideration transferred including the recognised amount of any 

non-controlling interest in the acquiree, less the net recognised amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets 

acquired and liabilities assumed, all measured as of the acquisition date.   

 Consideration transferred includes the fair values of the assets transferred, liabilities incurred by the Group to the 

previous owners of the acquiree, and equity interest issued by the Group.  Consideration transferred also includes the 

fair value of any contingent consideration and share-based payment awards of the acquiree that are replaced 

mandatorily in the business combination (see below).   If a business combination results in the termination of pre-existing 

relationships between the Group and the acquire, then the lower of the termination amount, as contained in the 

agreement, and the value of the off-market element is deducted from the consideration transferred and recognised in 

other expenses. 

 Share-based payment awards 

 When share-based payment awards exchanged (replacement awards) for awards held by the acquiree’s employees 

(acquiree’s awards) relate to past services, then a part of the market-based measure of the awards replaced is included 

in the consideration transferred.  If they require future services, then the difference between the amount included in 

consideration transferred and the market-based measure of the replacement awards is treated as post-combination 

compensation cost.  

 Contingent liabilities 

 A contingent liability of the acquiree is assumed in a business combination only if such a liability represents a present 

obligation and arises from a past event, and its fair value can be measured reliably. 

 Non-controlling interest 

 The Group measures any non-controlling interest at its proportionate interest in the identifiable net assets of the 

acquiree. 

 Transaction costs 

 Transaction costs that the Group incurs in connection with a business combination, such as finder’s fees, legal fees, due 

diligence fees, and other professional and consulting fees, are expensed as incurred. 

(ii) Subsidiaries 

 Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company.  The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the 

consolidated financial statements from the date the control commences until the date that control ceases.  The 

accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed when necessary to align them with the policies adopted by the 

Group. 

 In the Company’s financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost. 

(iii) Investments in associates and jointly controlled entities (equity accounted investees) 

 Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control, over the financial and 

operating policies.  Significant influence is presumed to exist when the Group holds between 20 and 50 percent of the 

voting power of another entity.  Jointly controlled entities are those entities over whose activities the Group has joint 

control, established by contractual agreement and requiring unanimous consent for strategic financial and operating 

decisions.   

 Investment in associates and jointly controlled entities are accounted for using the equity method (equity accounted 

investees) and are initially recognised at cost.  The Group’s investment includes goodwill identified on acquisition, net of 

any accumulated impairment losses.  The consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share of the income and 

expenses and equity movements of equity accounted investees, after adjustments to align the accounting policies with 

those of the Group, from the date that the significant influence or joint control commences until the date that significant 

influence or joint control ceases.  When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an equity accounted investee, 

the carrying amount of that interest, including any long-term investments, is reduced to nil, and the recognition of further 

losses is discontinued except to the extent the Group has an obligation or has made payments on behalf of the investee. 

 In the Company’s financial statements, investments in associates are classified as available-for-sale financial assets. 

 In the Company’s financial statements, investments in jointly controlled entities are carried at cost. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012 

 

b. Income Tax 

 The income tax expense (revenue) for the year comprises current income tax expense (income) and deferred tax 

expense (income). 

 Current income tax expense charged to the profit or loss is the tax payable on taxable income calculated using 

applicable income tax rates enacted, or substantially enacted, as at reporting date.  Current tax liabilities (assets) are 

therefore measured at the amounts expected to be paid to (recovered from) the relevant taxation authority. 

 Deferred income tax expense reflects movements in deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability balances during the year 

as well unused tax losses. 

 Current and deferred income tax expense (income) is charged or credited directly to equity instead of the profit or loss 

when the tax relates to items that are credited or charged directly to equity. 

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are ascertained based on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of 

assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax assets also result where 

amounts have been fully expensed but future tax deductions are available.  No deferred income tax will be recognised 

from the initial recognition of an asset or liability, excluding a business combination, where there is no effect on 

accounting or taxable profit or loss. 

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset 

is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at reporting date.  Their 

measurement also reflects the manner in which management expects to recover or settle the carrying amount of the 

related asset or liability. 

 Deferred tax assets relating to temporary differences and unused tax losses are recognised only to the extent that it is 

probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the benefits of the deferred tax asset can be utilised. 

 Where temporary differences exist in relation to investments in subsidiaries, branches, associates, and joint ventures, 

deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be 

controlled and it is not probable that the reversal will occur in the foreseeable future. 

 Current tax assets and liabilities are offset where a legally enforceable right of set-off exists and it is intended that net 

settlement or simultaneous realisation and settlement of the respective asset and liability will occur.  Deferred tax assets 

and liabilities are offset where a legally enforceable right of set-off exists, the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to 

income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities where it 

is intended that net settlement or simultaneous realisation and settlement of the respective asset and liability will occur in 

future periods in which significant amounts of deferred tax assets or liabilities are expected to be recovered or settled. 

 Tax Consolidation 

 ATW Holdings Limited and its wholly-owned Australian subsidiaries have formed an income tax consolidated group 

under tax consolidation legislation.  Each entity in the Group recognises its own current and deferred tax assets and 

liabilities.  Such taxes are measured using the ‘stand-alone taxpayer’ approach to allocation.   Current tax liabilities 

(assets) and deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and tax credits in the subsidiaries are immediately 

transferred to the head entity.  The tax consolidated group has entered a tax funding arrangement whereby each 

company in the group contributes to the income tax payable by the Group in proportion to their contribution to the 

group’s taxable income. Differences between the amounts of net tax assets and liabilities derecognised and the net 

amounts recognised pursuant to the funding arrangement are recognised as either a contribution by, or distribution to the 

head entity. 

c. Inventories 

 Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of manufactured products includes 

direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate portion of variable and fixed overheads. Overheads are applied on the 

basis of normal operating capacity. Costs are assigned on the basis of weighted average costs. 

d. Property, Plant and Equipment  

 Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair value as indicated less, where applicable, any 

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. 

 Plant and equipment 

 Plant and equipment are measured on the cost basis. 

 

 

F
or

 p
er

so
na

l u
se

 o
nl

y



ATW HOLDINGS Limited ABN 85 100 531 191 and Controlled Entities 

- 14 -  

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012 

  

d. Property, Plant and Equipment (cont’d) 

 The carrying amount of plant and equipment is reviewed annually by directors to ensure it is not in excess of the 

recoverable amount from these assets. The recoverable amount is assessed on the basis of the expected net cash flows 

that will be received from the asset’s employment and subsequent disposal. The expected net cash flows have been 

discounted to their present values in determining recoverable amounts. 

 Plant and equipment (cont’d) 

 The cost of fixed assets constructed within the consolidated group includes the cost of materials, direct labour, borrowing 

costs and an appropriate proportion of fixed and variable overheads. 

 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only 

when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the group and the cost of the item 

can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the profit or loss during the financial period 

in which they are incurred. 

 Depreciation 

 The depreciable amount of all fixed assets including buildings and capitalised lease assets, but excluding freehold land, 

is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the asset’s useful life to the consolidated group commencing from the time 

the asset is held ready for use. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of either the unexpired period 

of the lease or the estimated useful lives of the improvements. 

 The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assets are: 

 Class of Fixed Asset Depreciation Rate 

 Leasehold improvements 33.3% straight line 

 Plant and equipment 11.25% – 50% straight line 

 Leased plant and equipment 15% reducing balance 

 The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date. 

 Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These gains and losses 

are included in profit or loss. 

e. Leases 

 Leases of fixed assets where substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to the ownership of the asset, but not the 

legal ownership that is transferred to entities in the consolidated group, are classified as finance leases.  

 Finance leases are capitalised by recording an asset and a liability at the lower of the amounts equal to the fair value of 

the leased property or the present value of the minimum lease payments, including any guaranteed residual values. 

Lease payments are allocated between the reduction of the lease liability and the lease interest expense for the period. 

 Leased assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or the lease term.  

 Lease payments for operating leases, where substantially all the risks and benefits remain with the lessor, are charged 

as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.  

 Lease incentives under operating leases are recognised as a liability and amortised on a straight-line basis over the life 

of the lease term.  

f. Financial Instruments 

 Recognition and Initial Measurement 

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of 

the instrument. For financial assets, this is equivalent to the date that the company commits itself to either the purchase 

or sale of the asset (i.e. trade date accounting is adopted).  

 Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value plus transactions costs.  

 Classification and Subsequent Measurement 

 Finance instruments are subsequently measured at either of fair value, amortised cost using the effective interest rate 

method, or cost.  Fair value represents the amount for which an asset could be exchanged or a liability settled, between 

knowledgeable, willing parties.  Where available, quoted prices in an active market are used to determine fair value.  In 

other circumstances, valuation techniques are adopted. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012 

  

f. Financial Instruments (cont’d) 

 Classification and Subsequent Measurement (cont’d) 

 a. the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial recognition; 

 b. less principal repayments; 

 c. plus or minus the cumulative amortisation of the difference, if any, between the amount initially recognised and 

the maturity amount calculated using the effective interest method; and 

 d. less any reduction for impairment. 

 The effective interest method is used to allocate interest income or interest expense over the relevant period and is 

equivalent to the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts (including fees, transaction costs 

and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life (or when this cannot be reliably predicted, the contractual 

term) of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. Revisions to 

expected future net cash flows will necessitate an adjustment to the carrying value with a consequential recognition of an 

income or expense in profit or loss. 

 The Group does not designate any interests in subsidiaries, associates or joint venture entities as being subject to the 

requirements of accounting standards specifically applicable to financial instruments.   

 i. Financial liabilities 

  Non-derivative financial liabilities (excluding financial guarantees) are subsequently measured at amortised cost. 

 ii. Loans and receivables 

  Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted 

in an active market and are subsequently measured at amortised cost. 

 Fair Value  

 Fair value is determined based on current bid prices for all quoted investments. Valuation techniques are applied to 

determine the fair value for all unlisted securities, including recent arm’s length transactions, reference to similar 

instruments and option pricing models.  

 Impairment  

 At each reporting date, the Group assess whether there is objective evidence that a financial instrument has been 

impaired.  Assets other than goodwill are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate 

that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.  An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s 

carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.  The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less 

costs to sell and value in use.  For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for 

which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets 

or groups of assets (cash-generating unit).  Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment are 

reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period. 

 Derecognition 

 Financial assets are derecognised where the contractual rights to receipt of cash flows expires or the asset is transferred 

to another party whereby the entity no longer has any significant continuing involvement in the risks and benefits 

associated with the asset. Financial liabilities are derecognised where the related obligations are either discharged, 

cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying value of the financial liability extinguished or transferred to 

another party and the fair value of consideration paid, including the transfer of non-cash assets or liabilities assumed, is 

recognised in profit or loss. 

g. Impairment of Assets 

 At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying values of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether 

there is any indication that those assets have been impaired. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the 

asset, being the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use, is compared to the asset’s carrying 

value. Any excess of the asset’s carrying value over its recoverable amount is expensed to the profit or loss. 

 Impairment testing is performed annually for goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives.  

 Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable 

amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.  
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012 

  

h. Investments in Associates 

 Investments in associate companies are recognised in the financial statements by applying the equity method of 

accounting. The equity method of accounting recognised the Group’s share of post-acquisition reserves of its associates. 

i. Interests in Joint Ventures 

 The consolidated group’s interests in joint venture entities are brought to account using the equity method of accounting 

in the consolidated financial statements. The parent entity’s interests in joint venture entities are brought to account 

using the cost method.  Details of the consolidated group’s interests are shown at Note 11. 

j Goodwill 

 Goodwill is initially recorded at the amount by which the purchase price for a business combination exceeds the fair 

value attributed to the interest in the net fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities at date of 

acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill on acquisition of associates 

is included in investments in associates. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated 

impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the 

entity sold.  

k. Foreign Currency Transactions and Balances 

 Functional and presentation currency 

 The functional currency of each of the Group’s entities is measured using the currency of the primary economic 

environment in which that entity operates. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Australian dollars 

which is the parent entity’s functional and presentation currency.  The functional currency of the disposed entities that 

were based in Singapore is Singapore dollars. 

 Transaction and balances 

 Foreign currency transactions are translated into functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the date of 

the transaction. Foreign currency monetary items are translated at the year-end exchange rate. Non-monetary items 

measured at historical cost continue to be carried at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary 

items measured at fair value are reported at the exchange rate at the date when fair values were determined. 

 Exchange differences arising on the translation of monetary items are recognised in the profit or loss, except where 

deferred in equity as a qualifying cash flow or net investment hedge. 

 Group companies 

 The financial results and position of foreign operations whose functional currency is different from the Group’s 

presentation currency are translated as follows: 

 — assets and liabilities are translated at year-end exchange rates prevailing at that reporting date; 

 — income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates for the period; and 

 — retained earnings are translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transaction. 

 Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations are transferred directly to the Group’s foreign currency 

translation reserve in the Statement of Financial Position. These differences are recognised in the profit or loss in the 

period in which the operation is disposed. 

l. Employee Benefits 

 Provision is made for the company’s liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by employees to 

reporting date. Employee benefits that are expected to be settled within one year have been measured at the amounts 

expected to be paid when the liability is settled. Employee benefits payable later than one year have been measured at 

the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made for those benefits. Those cashflows are discounted 

using market yields on national government bonds with terms to maturity that match the expected timing of cashflows. 

m. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid 

investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within 

short-term borrowings in current liabilities on the Statements of Financial Position. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012 

  

n. Revenue and Other Income 

 Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable after taking into account any trade 

discounts and volume rebates allowed.  Any consideration deferred is treated as the provision of finance and is 

discounted at a rate of interest that is generally accepted in the market for similar arrangements.  The difference 

between the amount initially recognised and the amount ultimately received is interest revenue. 

 Sale of goods and services 

 Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point of delivery as this corresponds to the transfer of significant 

risks and rewards of ownership of the goods and the cessation of all involvement in those goods. 

 Revenue recognition relating to the provision of services is determined with reference to the stage of completion of the 

transaction at reporting date and where outcome of the contract can be estimated reliably. Stage of completion is 

determined with reference to the services performed to date as a percentage of total anticipated services to be 

performed.   Where the outcome cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent that related 

expenditure is recoverable. 

 Interest 

 Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest rate method, which, for floating rate financial assets, is the rate 

inherent in the instrument. 

 Dividends 

 Dividend revenue is recognised when the right to receive a dividend has been established.  Dividends received from 

associates and joint venture entities are accounted for in accordance with the equity method of accounting. 

 All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST) 

o. Receivables 

 Collectability of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis.  Debts which are known to be uncollectable are written-off  

by reducing the carrying amount directly.  Debts are impaired when there is objective evidence that the debt will not be 

able to collect all amounts according to their original terms.  The amount of an impairment loss is recognised in profit or 

loss within other expenses. 

o. Trade and Other Payables 

 Trade and other payables represent the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period for goods and services 

received by the Group during the reporting period which remains unpaid.  The balance is recognised as a current liability 

with the amount being normally paid within 30 days of recognition of the liability. 

p. Borrowing Costs 

 Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of assets that necessarily take a 

substantial period of time to prepare for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time 

as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. 

 All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred. 

q. Goods and Services Tax (GST) 

 Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is 

not recoverable from the Australian Tax Office. In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost of 

acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of the expense. Receivables and payables in the statement of financial 

position are shown inclusive of GST.  The net amount receivable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included 

within receivables or payables in the statement of financial position. 

 Cash flows are presented in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis, except for the GST component of investing 

and financing activities, which are disclosed as operating cash flows. 

r. Comparative Figures 

 When required by Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation 

for the current financial year.  
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 Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions 

 The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that 

affect the reported amounts in the financial statements. Management continually evaluates its judgements and estimates 

in relation to assets, liabilities, contingent liabilities, revenue and expenses.  Management bases its judgements and 

estimates on historical experience and on other various factors it believes to be reasonable under the circumstances, the 

result of which form the basis of the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other 

sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions and conditions. 

 Management has identified the following critical accounting policies for which significant judgements, estimates and 

assumptions are made. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions and conditions and 

may materially affect financial results or the financial position reported in future periods. 

 Further details of the nature of these assumptions and conditions may be found in the relevant notes to the financial 

statements. 

(i) Significant Accounting Judgements 

 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets other than Goodwill 

 The Group assesses impairment of all assets at each reporting date by evaluating conditions specific to the Group and 

to the particular asset that may lead to impairment. These include product, technology, economic and political 

environments and future product expectations. If an impairment trigger exists the recoverable amount of the asset is 

determined.  There was no impairment during the financial year ended 30 June 2012 (2011:  $Nil). 

 Taxation 

 The group is subject to income taxes in Australia. There are many transactions and calculations undertaken during the 

ordinary course of business for which ultimate tax determination is uncertain.  The group estimates its tax liabilities 

based on the group’s understanding of the tax law.  Where the final outcome of these matters is different from the 

amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred income tax assets and 

liabilities in the period in which such determination is made.   

Judgement is also required in assessing whether deferred tax assets and certain deferred tax liabilities are recognised 

on the statement of financial position. Deferred tax assets, including those arising from un-recouped tax losses, capital 

losses and temporary differences, are recognised only when it is considered more likely than not that they will be 

recovered, which is dependent on the generation of sufficient future taxable profits. Deferred tax liabilities arising from 

temporary differences in investments, caused principally by retained earnings held in foreign tax jurisdictions, are 

recognised unless repatriation of retained earnings can be controlled and are not expected to occur in the foreseeable 

future. 

 Assumptions about the generation of future taxable profits and repatriation of retained earnings depend on 

management’s estimates of future cash flows. These depend on estimates of future sales volumes, operating costs, 

restoration costs, capital expenditure, dividends and other capital management transactions. Judgements are also 

required about the application of income tax legislation. These judgements and assumptions are subject to risk and 

uncertainty, hence there is a possibility that changes in circumstances will alter expectations, which may impact the 

amount of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities recognised on the balance sheet and the amount of other tax 

losses and temporary differences not yet recognised. In such circumstances, some or all of the carrying amounts of 

recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities may require adjustment, resulting in a corresponding credit or charge to 

profit or loss. 

 The amount of benefits brought to account or which may be realised in the future is based on the assumption that no 

adverse change will occur in income taxation legislation and the anticipation that the consolidated group will derive 

sufficient future assessable income to enable the benefit to be realised and comply with the conditions of deductibility 

imposed by the law. 
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 Going Concern 

 The financial report has been prepared on a going concern basis. The directors continue to monitor the on-going funding 

requirements of the Group and will seek further equity funding where necessary.  The company and its controlled entities 

incurred a loss of $599,361 (2011: $990,414) and a negative cash flow from operating activities of $611,713 (2011:  

negative cash flow $2,204,880) for the year ended 30 June 2012.  The Group has a net working capital deficit of 

$221,188 (2011: net working capital $386,924) as at 30 June 2012. 

The directors nevertheless believe it is appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis for the 

following reasons. 

The company disposed of its operating undertaking, at a profit, in April 2011. The company has now entered into an 

agreement, subject to shareholder and regulatory approvals, to acquire 100% of the capital of Fitgenes Pty Ltd.  The 

ASX has ruled that its approval for this transaction is subject to the company re-complying with Chapters 1 and 2 of the 

Listing Rules.  Fitgenes and the company have embarked on a programme to perfect such re-compliance. Key steps are: 

 The chair of Fitgenes has joined the board of the Company. 

 The Company has concluded an Enti t lement Offer. 5 1 shareholders contributed $48,929. The 

underwriter to the offer has agreed to provide the balance of approximately $93,000. 

 Fitgenes is in the process of completing a capital raising of $275,000. 

 The Company to conduct EGM to secure shareholder approval for the transaction, for consolidation of its capital 

and to otherwise clear all other requirements to allow it to raise at least $2.5 million. 

 Fitgenes to fund, by way of a non-recourse loan to the Company, the costs of re-compliance (projected to be 

approximately $250,000). 

 The Company to complete a full-form prospectus, including Investigating Accountant's Report, Independent 

Expert's Report and legal guidance and review/sign-off. 

 The Company, in collaboration with Fitgenes, to raise sufficient capital from enough separate shareholders to 

meet all the re-compliance requirements, including net assets, shareholder spread and working capital, at a 

share price of at least $0.20. 

 

 The agreement with Fitgenes and the above programme provide the basis for the board's view that the Group remains 

a going concern.  The short term cash requirements will be funded via the proceeds from the Entitlement Offer and the 

Fitgenes loan arrangement. Once the transaction is approved, including by all regulatory authorities, and following 

successful completion of the retail capital raising , cash flow projections will be as per those developed for the Fitgenes 

business. 

 Should the Group not be able to complete the above transaction or raise additional working capital as required then it 

may not be able to settle its debts as and when they fall due and realise its assets at the values included in the 

Statements of Financial Position. 

The financial report does not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded 

amounts that might be necessary should ATW Holdings Limited not be able to continue as a going concern. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012 

  

 
Note 

Consolidated Group 

  2012 2011  

      

NOTE 2: REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME   $ $  

Revenue – Continuing operations      

— interest received 2a  14 349  

Total Revenue                                       14 349  

      

a. Interest revenue from:     

— other persons   14 349  

    14 349  

      

 

Other Income – Continuing operations 

     

— Debts forgiven   - 468,690  

— Foreign currency translation gain   - 15,534  

— Other income   - 488,635  

    - 972,859  

Revenue –  Discontinued operations 
     

— sales   - 11,262,755  

— interest received 2b  - 14,188  

— other revenue   - 74,100  

Total Revenue                                       - 11,351,043  

b. Interest revenue from:     

— other persons   - 14,188  

    - 14,188  

Other Income – Discontinued operations      

— Gain on deconsolidation    - 2,725,567  

    - 2,725,567  
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012 

 

       

NOTE 3: EXPENSES  
    

Profit/(loss) before income tax has been determined 

after:  

    

 
Note 

Consolidated Group 

  2012 2011  

      

a.   Expenses      

Cost of sales      

— Continuing operations   - -  

— Discontinued operations   - 1,829,759  

    - 1,829,759  

 

Depreciation of non-current assets – Plant and 

equipment  

    

— Continuing operations   806 270  

— Discontinued operations   - 275,410  

    806 275,680  

 

Bad and doubtful debts:      

— Continuing operations – Associated companies    20,000 3,670,502  

— Discontinued operations    - -  

    20,000 3,670,502  

       

Rental and occupancy on operating leases:      

— Continuing operations   6,754 20,360  

— Discontinued operations   - 1,639,160  

    6,754 1,659,520  

Foreign currency translation losses      

— Continuing operations   - 20,974  

— Discontinued operations   - -  

    - 20,974  
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012 

 

NOTE 4: INCOME TAX 

 
Note 

Consolidated Group 

  2012 2011  

   $ $  

Accounting (loss) before tax from continuing  

  operations   (608,932) (3,765,494)  

Accounting profit before tax from discontinuing  

  operations   - 2,739,038  

Consolidated profit/(loss) loss before tax   (608,932) (1,026,456)  

      

A. Numerical reconciliation of income tax 

expense to prima facie tax payable       

Prima facie tax payable on (loss) before income tax  

  at 30% (2011: 30%)   (182,680) (307,937)  

Sundry non-deductible expenses for 

  Australian tax consolidated group   23,837 599,475  

Sundry assessable (non-assessable) items for 

  Australian tax consolidated group   - (1,623,273)  

Sundry non-deductible (deductible) expenses for 

  International Operations   - 1,421,031  

Deferred tax assets not brought to account   158,843 -  

Recoupment of prior year tax losses not previously 

  brought to account   - (67,513)  

Difference in international tax rates and exchange 

  rates   - (1,753)  

Under/(over) provision in respect of prior years   (9,557) (56,072)  

Income tax expense/(benefit)   (9,557) (36,042)  

Income tax attributable to discontinued operations   - (36,042)  

Income tax attributable to continuing operations   (9,557) -  

      

B.  Income tax expense      

Current tax   - 10,010  

Under/(over) provision in respect of prior years   (9,557) (56,072)  

Deferred income tax:      

Relating to origination and reversal on temporary differences  - 10,020  

Income tax expense/(benefit)   (9,557) (36,042)  

Income tax expense attributable to discontinued operations  - 36,042  

Income tax expense/(benefit) reported in statement of 

  comprehensive income   (9,557) -  
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012 

 

NOTE 5: DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 

 

On 15 April 2010, the Company executed an agreement for the sale of several of its operating subsidiaries, subject to regulatory 

and the Company’s shareholders’ approval at the general meeting, to the Company’s major shareholders, Mr. Ananda Rajah 

and Ms Pathma Ayadurai (collectively known as “Purchasers”).  The operating subsidiaries for the transaction were Atos 

Wellness Pte Ltd, Inner Harmony Pte Ltd, Atos Academy Pte Ltd, Atos Research Centre Pte Ltd, Atos Consumer Products Pte 

Ltd and Bodycure International Ltd (collectively known as “Atos Singapore”) were valued at an estimate of AUD4.17 million.   

 

The transaction was completed with shareholders' approval at the General Meeting on 21 April 2011. The purchasers settled 

the transaction with AUD500,000 in cash, release and discharge of various debts owed by the Company to the Purchasers, the 

sale companies and other third parties at a consideration of AUD3.53 million and selective buyback and cancellation of 

48,828,125 shares in the Company held by Mr. Ananda for an agreed value of AUD200,000. The gain on this transaction is 

AUD 2.92 million. 

 

 Note Consolidated Group 

  30.06.2012 30.06.2011 

   $ $  

Financial information relating to the discontinued operation to the date of 

disposal is set out below.  The gain on disposal of the discontinued operations 

is included in the profit from discontinued operations in the Income Statement.  

The financial performance of the discontinued operation to the date of sale is 

as follows: 

   

    

Revenue  - 8,300,419 

Expenses  - (8,318,902) 

Profit before income tax  - (18,483) 

Income tax benefit/ (expense)  - 31,361 

Profit attributable to members of the parent entity  - 12,878 

Profit on sale before income tax (a) - 1,583,380 

Income tax expense  - - 

Profit on sale after income tax  - 1,583,380 

Total profit after tax attributable to the discontinued operations  - 1,596,258 

    

The net cash flows of the discontinued divisions which have been 

incorporated into the statement of cash flows are as follows: 

   

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities  - 425,325 

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities  - (293,987) 

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities  - (4,687) 

Net cash increase generated by the discontinuing divisions  - (126,651) 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012 

 Note Consolidated Group 

  30.06.2012 30.06.2011 

   $ $  

NOTE 5: DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONT’D) 

 (a) Details of sale of subsidiary    

      Consideration received   - 

      Cash                                    - 500,000 

      Loans Discharged  - 2,825,516 

      Share Cancellation  - 200,000 

      Total disposal consideration  - 3,525,516 

      Less: Net assets at date of disposal (b) - (2,195,198) 

      Foreign exchange reserve recycled to profit and loss  - 253,062 

      Profit on sale before income tax  - 1,583,380 

      Income tax expense  - - 

      Profit on sale after income tax  - 1,583,380 

    

    

(b) The carrying amounts of assets and liabilities as at the date of sale (21 

April 2011) were: 

   

   21.04.2011 

   $ 

Plant and equipment   463,310 

Inventories   1,336,399 

Trade and other receivables   2,453,291 

Cash and bank balances   566,037 

Goodwill   978,025 

Total assets   5,797,062 

    

Trade and other payables   2,222,064 

Deferred income   585,886 

Financial liabilities   197,591 

Provision for taxation   584,585 

Deferred taxation   11,738 

Total liabilities   3,601,864 

    

Net assets   2,195,198 

Less: Non-controlling interests   - 

Net assets attributable to members of the parent entity   2,195,198 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012 

 

NOTE 5: DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONT’D) 

 

On 12 August 2010, the Board of Directors of ATW Holdings Limited announced that the Company had executed an agreement 

with a private Singapore investor on the sale of its 51% shareholdings in Body Contours Pte Ltd for AUD 2,493,654 (SGD 3.349 

million). The transaction was settled partly with AUD708,500 (SGD 900,000) in cash and the remaining consideration through 

release and discharge of various debts owing by the Company to Body Contours Pte Ltd for a sum of AUD 1.79 million (SGD 

2.45 million).  The transaction was completed without shareholders' approval on 17 September 2010 after receiving approval 

from the ASX dated 8 September 2010.  The management determined the gain to the consolidated entity on disposal of the 

51% interest in Body Contours to be $1,129,544.  

 Note Consolidated Group 

  30.06.2011 30.06.2011 

Financial information relating to the discontinued operation to the date of 

disposal is set out below.  The gain on disposal of the discontinued operations 

is included in the profit from discontinued operations in the Income Statement.  

The financial performance of the discontinued operation to the date of sale is 

as follows: 

   

    

Revenue  - 3,050,624 

Expenses  - (3,018,670) 

Profit before income tax  - 31,954 

Income tax benefit/ (expense)  - 4,681 

Profit attributable to members of the parent entity  - 36,635 

Profit on sale before income tax (a) - 1,142,187 

Income tax expense  - - 

Profit on sale after income tax  - 1,142,187 

Total profit after tax attributable to the discontinued operations  - 1,178,822 

    

The net cash flows of the discontinued divisions which have been 

incorporated into the statement of cash flows are as follows: 

   

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities  - 798,815 

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities  - (406,389) 

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities  - (62,534) 

Net cash increase generated by the discontinuing divisions  - 329,892 
 

 

(a) Details of sale of subsidiary    

      Consideration received    

      Cash                                    - 708,500 

      Loans Discharged  - 1,785,154 

      Total disposal consideration  - 2,493,654 

      Less: Net assets at date of disposal (b) - (1,360,679) 

      Foreign exchange reserve recycled to profit and loss  - 9,212 

      Profit on sale before income tax  - 1,142,187 

      Income tax expense  - - 

      Profit on sale after income tax  - 1,142,187 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012 

 

NOTE 5: DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONT’D) 

 

(b) The carrying amounts of assets and liabilities as at the date of sale (17 

September 2010) were: 

   

   17.09.2010 

   $ 

Plant and equipment   810,520 

Inventories   413,682 

Trade and other receivables   3,151,646 

Cash and bank balances   502,358 

Goodwill   381,851 

Total assets   5,260,057 

    

Trade and other payables   1,907,906 

Deferred income   765,989 

Financial liabilities   427,842 

Provision for taxation   21,998 

Deferred taxation   29,713 

Total liabilities   3,153,448 

    

Net assets   2,106,609 

Less: Non-controlling interests   (745,930) 

Net assets attributable to members of the parent entity   1,360,679 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012 

 

NOTE 6: KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL COMPENSATION 

 

 

 

a. 

Remuneration 

  2012 2011  

  $ $  

 Short-term 145,387 413,170  

 Post-employment 5,075 28,061  

 Long-term benefits - -  

 Share-based payments - -  

  150,462 441,231  

  

b. Key Management Personnel Compensation 

 Detailed information on key management personnel remuneration has been included in the Remuneration Report section 

of the Directors report. 

 There were no options on issue during the year ended 30 June 2012 

 

c. Number of Shares held by Key Management Personnel 

      

      

Balance 

1.7.2011 

Granted as 

Compensation 

Options 

Exercised 

Net Change* 

Other 

Balance  

30.6.2012 

Conrad Crisafulli      **                                                   - - - - - 

Ernest Boswarva      & - - - - - 

Robert Mair               ! - - - - - 

Mark Leong
~                    ^

 540,000 - - - 540,000 

Ananda Rajah 24,310,913 - - - 24,310,913 

Josef Plattner           # 9,192,449 - - - 9,192,449 

Lloyd Halvorson       $ 151,000 - - - 151,000 

Total 34,194,362 - - - 34,194,362 

 

** Appointed 27 September 2011 

&  Appointed 31 October2011 

! Appointed 21 May 2012 

^  Resigned 21 May 2012 

#  Resigned 27 September 2011 

$   Resigned 31 October 2011 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012 

c. Number of Shares held by Key Management Personnel (Cont’d) 
 

 Balance      

1.7.2010 

Granted as 

Compensation 

Options 

Exercised 

Net Change* 

Other 

Balance      

30.6.2011 

Josef Plattner  9,192,449 - - - 9,192,449 

Ananda Rajah 73,139,038 - - (48,828,125) 24,310,913 

Lloyd Halvorson  151,000 - - - 151,000 

Jitto Arulampalam - - - - - 

Pathma Ayadurai 24,414,063 - - - 24,414,063 

Frank Cannavo 2,363,060 - - (2,000,000) 363,060 

Mark Leong 540,000 - - - 540,000 

Total 109,799,610 - - (50,828,125) 58,971,485 

 

 

* Net Change Other refers to shares purchased or sold during the financial year and the cancellation of shares held by Ananda Rajah in 

the comparative period following the disposal of Atos Singapore Pte Ltd and its controlled entities. 

 

 
Consolidated Group 

  2012 2011  

  $ $  

NOTE 7: AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION     

Remuneration of the auditor of the parent entity:     

— BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd for auditing or reviewing the financial 

report  79,139 77,752  

Remuneration of other auditors of subsidiaries of discontinued 

operations for:     

— auditing or reviewing the financial report of subsidiaries  - 29,452  
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012 

 

NOTE 8: EARNINGS PER SHARE 

 Consolidated Group 

  2012 2011  

     

  $ $  

a.  Reconciliation of loss to profit or loss     

Profit/(loss)  (599,361) (990,414)  

(Profit)/loss attributable to non-controlling equity interest  - (20,548)  

Earnings used to calculate basic EPS  (599,361) (1,010,962)  

     

b.  Reconciliation of earnings to profit or loss from continuing  

  operations     

Profit/(loss)  (599,361) (3,765,494)  

(Profit)/loss attributable to non-controlling equity interest in respect of  

  continuing operations 

 

- - 

 

Earnings used to calculate basic EPS from continuing operations  (599,361) (3,765,494)  

     

c.  Reconciliation of earnings to profit or loss from discontinued  

  operations     

Profit from discontinued operations  - 2,775,080  

(Profit)/loss attributable to non-controlling equity interest in respect of  

  discontinued operations 

 

- (20,548) 

 

Earnings used to calculate basic EPS from continuing operations  - 2,754,532  

     

  No. No.  

d. Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding     

  during the year used in calculating basic EPS  141,814,736 181,278,563  

Weighted average of options outstanding  - -  

Weighted average of number of ordinary shares outstanding     

  during the year used in calculating dilutive EPS  141,814,736 181,278,563  

 

Potential ordinary shares are not considered dilutive, therefore diluted earnings per share are the same as the basic earnings 

per share. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012 

  

NOTE 9: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Note Consolidated Group 

  2012 2011  

  $ $  

Cash at bank and in hand   61,649 178,862  

   61,649 178,862  

      

Reconciliation of Cash      

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the cash 

flow statement is reconciled to items in the balance sheet 

as follows: 

 

    

Cash at bank and in hand   61,649 178,862  

Bank overdrafts used for cash management purposes   - -  

   61,649 178,862  

 

NOTE 10: TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES  
    

CURRENT  
    

Trade receivables   - 1,186  

Allowance for impairment of receivables 10a  - -  

   - 1,186  

      

Other receivables   7,921 354,490  

   7,921 355,676  

 

NON CURRENT 

Amounts receivable from:      

— Associated companies   3,584,231 3,584,231  

— Allowance for impairment – associated companies 10a(ii)  (3,584,231) (3,584,231)  

   - -  

 
 

   

 

 

The amounts receivable from other related companies have been fully impaired. The ultimate recoupment of these receivables is 

dependent on upon the generation of sufficient future cash flows from the sale of the products of the Consolidated Group and the 

respective related companies. 
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NOTE 10: TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT’D) 

a. Allowance for Impairment of Receivables 

 Current trade and term receivables are non-interest bearing loans and generally on 30-day terms.  Non-current trade and 

term receivables are assessed for recoverability based on the underlying terms of the contract.  An allowance for 

impairment is recognised when there is objective evidence that an individual trade or term receivable is impaired.  These 

amounts have been included in the other expenses item. 

 Movement in the provision for impairment of receivables is as follows: 

 

  Opening 

Balance 

Charge for 

the Year 

Amounts 

Written Off 

Closing 

Balance 

  1 July 2010   30 June 2011 

 Consolidated Group     

(i) Current trade receivables - - - - 

(ii) Non-current associated companies 1,086,219 3,670,502 (1,172,490) 3,584,231 

  1,086,219 3,670,502 (1,172,490) 3,584,231 

 

  Opening 

Balance 

Charge for 

the Year 

Amounts 

Written Off 

Closing 

Balance 

  1 July 2011   30 June 2012 

 Consolidated Group     

(i) Current trade receivables - - - - 

(ii) Non-current associated companies 3,584,231 20,000 (20,000) 3,584,231 

  3,584,231 20,000 (20,000) 3,584,231 

 

 

 Impaired assets are provided for in full. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012 

 

NOTE 11: INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD 

  Consolidated Group 

   

 

2012 

$ 

2011 

$ 

 

Interests in joint venture entities   - -  

Share of net loss   - -  

   - -  

  Interests in Joint Venture Entities     

 ATW Holdings Ltd had a 50% interest in the joint venture 
entity ATOS SOL Wellness Pty Ltd incorporated in Australia 
which was involved in the wellness industry.  The joint venture 
entity entered voluntary liquidation in August 2009 and was 
deregistered on 30 November 2010. 

    

 The voting power held by ATW Holdings Ltd was 50%     

 The interest in joint venture entities is accounted for in the 
consolidated statements using the equity method of 
accounting 

 

- - 

 

 i. Share of joint venture entity’s results and financial 

position: 

    

  Current Assets  - -  

  Non-current Assets  - -  

  Total Assets  - -  

  Current Liabilities  - -  

  Non-current Liabilities  - -  

  Total Liabilities  - -  

       

       

  Consolidated Group 

   2012 

$ 

2011 

$ 

 

  Revenues  - -  

  Expenses  - -  

  Loss before income tax  - -  

  Income tax expense  - -  

  Loss after income tax  - -  
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012 

NOTE 12: ASSOCIATED COMPANIES 
 

Interests are held in the following associated companies 

Name Principal 

Activities 

Country of 

Incorporation 

Shares Ownership Interest Carry amount of 

investment 

    2012 

% 

2011 

% 

2012 

$ 

2011 

$ 

Unlisted:        

Medec International 

Pty Ltd 

Medical 

products 

manufacturing 

Australia Ord 49% 49% - - 

      - - 

        

  Consolidated Group 

   2012 

$ 

2011 

$ 

 

a. Movements During the Year in Equity 

Accounted Investment in Associated 

Companies 

     

 Balance at beginning of the financial year   - -  

Add: New investments during the year   - -  

 Share of associated company’s profit /(loss) 

after income tax   - -  

Less: Accumulated losses offset   - -  

 Balance at end of the financial year   - -  

       

b. Equity accounted profits of associates are 

broken down as follows: 

     

 
Share of associate’s profit before income tax 

expense 
  - -  

 Share of associate’s income tax expense   - -  

 Share of associate’s profit after income tax   - -  

c. Summarised Presentation of Aggregate 

Assets, Liabilities and Performance of 

Associates 

     

 The Group has not disclosed the summarised 

presentation of aggregate assets, liabilities and 

performance of Medic International Pty Ltd as 

the information is not available. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012 

 

NOTE 12: ASSOCIATED COMPANIES (CONT’D) 

d. Ownership interest in Medec International Pty 

Ltd at that company’s reporting date was 49% 

(2011: 49%) of ordinary shares. The reporting 

date of Medec International Pty Ltd is 30 June. 

This reporting date coincides with the entity’s 

holding company.  There were no transactions 

during the financial year. 

     

 

NOTE 13: OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS   

 

a.       Controlled Entities  

  
Country of 

Incorporation 

Percentage 

Owned * 

 

 

 

   2012 2011  

Legal Parent Entity:      

ATW Holdings  Limited  Australia    

      

Subsidiaries of ATW Holdings Limited      

      

Swandale Holdings Pty Ltd  Australia 100 100  

Learange Holdings Pty Ltd  Australia 100 100  

      

      

Letchworth House Pty Ltd 
#
  Australia 100 100  

#
 Letchworth House Pty Ltd was placed into voluntary administration 

on 4 July 2009   
  

 

      

The carrying value of the financial assets have been written-off in previous reporting periods. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012 

 

NOTE 14: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

 Note Consolidated Group 

  2012 2011  

  $ $  

Plant and equipment      

At cost   2,420 2,420  

Accumulated depreciation   (1,076) (270)  

   1,344 2,150  

 

Movements in Carrying Amounts  

Movement in the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment between the beginning and the end of 

the current financial year are as follows: 

   

Balance at the beginning of year   2,150 1,149,097  

Additions    - 420,401  

Disposals   - (1,291,938)  

Depreciation expense   (806) (275,410)  

   1,344 2,150  

 

 

NOTE 15: GOODWILL     

Balance at the beginning of year  - 1,359,876  

Disposals  - (1,356,876)  

  - -  
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 Consolidated Group 

  

2012 

$ 

2011 

$  

NOTE 16: OTHER ASSETS     

CURRENT     

Prepayments                                                                         17,709 7,900  

  17,709 7,900  

     

NOTE 17: TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES     

 Note Consolidated Group 

  2012 2011  

  $ $  

CURRENT     

Unsecured liabilities:     

Trade payables  81,967 6,404 

Accrued expenses and sundry payables  62,000 149,110 

Deposit for disposal of equity accounted investment 17a  164,500 - 

  308,467 155,514  

 
 

a.

  

The deposit for disposal of Medec International Pty Ltd  was paid in accordance with the share and purchase 

agreement executed by the Board with Mr. Ananda Rajah dated 29 December 2011. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012 

 Note  Consolidated Group 

   2012 

$ 

2011 

$ 

 

Note 18: Tax      

a. Liabilities      

 CURRENT      

 Income Tax   - -  

    - -  

       

 NON-CURRENT Opening 

Balance 

Charged 

to Income 

Disposals Exchange 

Differences 

Transfer to 

Liabilities 

held for sale 

Closing  

Balance 

  $ $ $ $ $ $ 

 Consolidated Group       

 Deferred Tax Liability       

 Property Plant and Equipment       

 — tax allowance 41,937 2,186 (42,940) (1,183) - - 

 — other 9,557 - - - - 9,557 

 Balance at 30 June 2011 51,494 2,186 (42,940) (1,183) - 9,557 

 Property Plant and Equipment       

 — tax allowance - - - - - - 

 — other 9,557 (9,557) - - - - 

 Balance at 30 June 2012 9,557 (9,557) - - - - 

        

 Deferred Tax Asset       

 Property Plant and Equipment       

 — tax allowance 7,834 (7,834) - - - - 

 — other - - - - - - 

 Balance at 30 June 2011 7,834 (7,834) - - - - 

 Property Plant and Equipment       

 — tax allowance - - - - - - 

 — other - - - - - - 

 Balance at 30 June 2012 - - - - - - 
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Note 18: Tax (cont’d)      

  Consolidated Group 

   2012 

$ 

2011 

$ 

 

b. Assets      

 Deferred tax assets not brought to account, the 

benefits of which will only be realised if the 

conditions for deductibility set out in Note 1(b) occur: 

     

 Australian  Operations     

 — temporary differences  18,591 5,360  

 — tax losses:  operating losses  1,023,325 889,586  

 — tax losses:  capital losses  893,922 884,922  

 Unrecognised deferred tax liabilities  - -  

 Total  1,935,838 1,779,868  

 
Balance of franking account at year end adjusted for 

franking credit arising from payment of provision of 

income tax  164,634 164,634  

      

 The use of the tax losses are subject to satisfying the tests in the Income Tax Assessment Act in the year of recoupment 

which is uncertain. 

 

 

NOTE 19:  ISSUED CAPITAL     

     

Ordinary shares     

Fully paid  4,998,814 5,198,814  

Shares issued/(cancelled) during the period:     

  -  21 April 2011 shares cancelled  - (200,000)  

  4,998,814 4,998,814  

     

The company has no specified level of authorised capital and the shares have no par value. 

     

a.       Ordinary shares  No. of shares No. of shares  

     

At the beginning of the reporting year  141,814,736 190,642,861  

Shares issued/(cancelled) during the period: 

  -  21 April 2011 shares cancelled   - (48,828,125)  

At reporting date 
 141,814,736 141,814,736  

Ordinary shares participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the parent entity in proportion to the number of 

shares held. 

At shareholders’ meetings each ordinary share is entitled to one vote when a poll is called, otherwise each shareholder has 

one vote on a show of hands. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012 

     

NOTE 19:  ISSUED CAPITAL (CONT’D)     

b. Capital Management  

 Management controls the capital of the group in order to maintain an acceptable debt to equity ratio, provide the 

shareholders with adequate returns and ensure that the group can fund its operations and continue as a going concern. 

The group’s debt and capital includes ordinary share capital, and financial liabilities, supported by financial assets.  

There are no externally imposed capital requirements. 

 Management effectively manages the group’s capital by assessing the group’s financial risks and adjusting its capital 

structure in response to changes in these risks and in the market. These responses include the management of debt 

levels, distribution to shareholders and share issues. 

 

The gearing ratio’s for the year ended 30 June 2012 and 30 June 2011 are as follows: 

  

 Note Consolidated Group 

   2012 2011  

   $ $  

 Total borrowings 19,20  - -  

 Less cash and cash equivalents  9  (61,649) (178,862)  

 Net Debt   (61,649) (178,862)  

 Total equity   (219,844) 379,517  

 Total capital   (281,493) 200,655  

       

 Gearing Ratio   N/A 78.1%  
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012 

 

NOTE 20: RESERVES    

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve      

The foreign currency translation reserve records exchange differences arising on translation of the financial statements of 

foreign controlled entities. 

      

Refer to the statement of changes in equity for movements in reserves. 

 

 

NOTE 21: CAPITAL AND LEASING COMMITMENTS 

 

There are no capital and leasing commitments at 30 June 2012 (2011: $Nil). 

 

 

NOTE 22: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

The Company is continuing to defend a claim for a liquidated sum of $40,000 in respect of the sale by a former subsidiary of 

a ‘Caloriefit’ machine and the Company’s defence is that it was not a party as at the date of the sale contract, being 21 

September 2009. 

There are no other contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2012 (2011:  $40,000). 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012 

 

NOTE 23: OPERATING SEGMENTS 

      

 

The Group has identified its operating segments based on the internal reports that are reviewed and used by the Chief Executive 

Officer (the chief operating decision maker) in assessing the performance and determining the allocation of resources. 

These reports, which are reviewed by the CEO on a monthly basis, consider the business from both geographical and product 

prospective. 

The reportable segments are based on operating segments determined by the similarity of the nature of products, the types of 

customers and the methods used to dispense the various products and services. 

The Group does not have any operating businesses, having divested its major investment in Atos Wellness Pte Ltd Singapore 

group in April 2011.  Accordingly, the Group’s no longer has any reporting segments. 

In the comparative period, the Group identified the following reportable segments: 

(i) Spa and Beauty Aesthetics – Body Contours Group (incorporating TAS) 

 

This segment is responsible for the sale, marketing and supply of spa products, spa treatments including beauty and 

aesthetic treatments of facials, massages and slimming treatments. 

(ii) Holistic Wellness Spa – Atos Singapore Group 

 

This segment is responsible for the sale, marketing and supply of spa products, spa treatments including beauty using 

state of the art beauty equipment. 

(iii) Therapeutic Spa – Inner Harmony (formerly Inahamani) 

 

This segment is responsible for the sale, marketing and supply of spa products, spa treatments tailored to address 

individual needs using a holistic approach to ease physical concerns. 

Basis of accounting for purposes of reporting by operating segments 

Accounting policies adopted 

Unless stated otherwise, all amounts reported to the Board of Directors as the chief decision maker with respect to operating 

segments are determined in accordance with accounting policies that are consistent to those adopted in the annual financial 

statements of the Group. 

Inter-segment transactions 

An internally determined transfer price is set for all inter-entity sales.  The price is re-set quarterly and is based on what would 

be realised in the event the sale was made to an external party at arm’s length.  All such transactions are eliminated on 

consolidation for the Group’s financial statements. 

Corporate charges are allocated to reporting segments based on the segments’ overall proportion of revenue generation with 

the Group.  The Board of Directors believes this is representative of likely consumption of head office expenditure that should 

be used in assessing segment performance and cost recoveries. 

Inter-segment loans payable and receivable are initially recognised at the consideration received net of transaction costs.  If 

inter-segment loans receivable and payable are not on commercial terms, these are not adjusted to fair value based on 

market interest rates.  This policy represents a departure from that applied to the statutory financial statements. 

Segment assets 

Where an asset is used across multiple segments, the asset is allocated to the segment that receives the majority of 

economic value from the asset.  In the majority of instances, segment assets are clearly identifiable on the basis of their 

nature and physical location. 
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NOTE 23: OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONT’D) 

Segment liabilities 

Liabilities are allocated to segments where there is direct nexus between the incurrence of the liability and the operations of 

the segment.  Borrowings and tax liabilities are generally considered to relate to the Group as a whole and are not allocated.  

Segment liabilities include trade and other payables and certain direct borrowings.   

Unallocated items 

The following items of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities are not allocated to operating segments as they are not 

considered part of the core operations of any segment: 

 impairment of assets and other non-recurring items of revenue or expenses; 

 deferred tax assets and liabilities; 

 current tax liabilities; 

 intangibles assets; and 

 discontinuing operations 

 

 

(i) Segment performance 

     

Consolidated 

Group  

Discontinuing 

Operations 

2012     $ $ 

Unallocated items:       

 Other income     - - 

 Interest income     14 - 

 Selling and marketing     - - 

 Employee benefits     (150,462) - 

 Other     (458,484) - 

Net (loss) / profit before tax     (608,932) - 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012 

NOTE 23: OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONT’D) 

 

Atos 

Singapore 

Body 

Contours 

Inner 

Harmony  

Consolidated 

Group  

Discontinuing 

Operations 

2011 $ $ $  $ $ 

Revenue       

External sales 5,289,927 3,041,414 2,770,625  - 11,101,966 

Inter-segment sales 160,789 - -  - 160,789 

Other revenue 74,019 81 -  - 74,100 

Interest revenue - 9,129 5,059  - 14,188 

Total Segment Revenue 5,524,735 3,050,624 2,775,684  - 11,351,043 

Reconciliation of segment revenue 

to group revenue       

Inter-segment elimination (160,790) - -  - (160,790) 

Total group revenue 5,363,945 3,050,624 2,775,684  - 11,190,253 

Segment net profit / (loss) before 

tax  
(135,433) 31,954 116,950  - 13,471 

Reconciliation of segment result to 

group net profit / (loss) before tax       

Unallocated items:       

 Other income     972,858 2,725,567 

 Interest income     349 - 

 Selling and marketing     - -- 

 Employee benefits     (102,310) - 

 Other     (4,636,391)  

Net (loss) / profit before tax     (3,765,494) 2,739,038 

      

      

      

(ii) Revenue by Geographical region 

 Revenue attributable to external customers is disclosed below, based on the location of the external customers. 

  2012 2011 

  $ $ 

 Australia - - 

 Asia - 11,101,966 

 Total revenue - 11,101,966 

      

(iii) Major customers 

 No single customer represented 10% or more of the consolidated revenue in the comparative period. 
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NOTE 24: CASH FLOW INFORMATION 

(a) Reconciliation of Cash Flow from Operations with 

Profit/(Loss) after Income Tax 

    

  Consolidated Group 

   2012 2011  

   $ $  

 Loss after income tax  (599,361) (990,414)  

 Non-cash flows in profit     

   Depreciation  806 275,680  

   (Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  - 12,212  

   Impairment of receivables  20,000 3,670,502  

   Impairment of other assets  - 374,153  

   Bad debts written off/(back)  - (468,690)  

   Gain on deferred deconsolidation  - (2,725,567)  

   Movement on foreign exchange reserve  - (208,893)  

   Other  - (12,542)  

      

 Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects of 

purchase and disposal of subsidiaries 

    

   (Increase) / decrease in receivables  (2,245) (1,638,654)  

   (Increase) / decrease in inventories  - 64,209  

   (Increase) / decrease in other assets  (9,809) 114,966  

   (Increase) / decrease in current tax assets  - -  

   (Increase) / decrease in deferred tax assets  - 7,834  

   Increase / (decrease) in payables  (11,547) (535,246)  

   Increase / (decrease) in current tax liabilities  - (143,944)  

   Increase / (decrease) in deferred tax liabilities  (9,557) (486)  

 Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities  (611,713) (2,204,880)  

      

(b) Disposal of Entities     

 On 17 September 2010, Body Contours Pte Ltd was sold 

for $2,493,654.  Body Contours Pte Ltd was a subsidiary 

of ATW Holdings Limited.  Aggregate details of this 

transaction are: 

    

 Disposal price  - 2,493,654  

 Cash consideration  - 708,500  

 Net (loss) / gain on disposal  - 1,142,187  
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  Consolidated Group 

   2012 2011  

   $ $  

NOTE 24: CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONT’D) 

 On 21 April 2011, Atos Wellness Pte Ltd was sold for 

$3,525,516.  Atos Wellness Pte Ltd was a legal subsidiary 

of ATW Holdings Ltd.  Aggregate details of this 

transaction are: 

    

 Disposal price  - 3,525,516  

 Cash consideration  - 500,000  

 Net (loss) / gain on disposal  - 1,583,380  

(c) Non-cash Financing and Investing Activities     

 i. Share cancellation 

On 21 April 2011, 48,828,125 shares were 

cancelled for a consideration of $200,000 as 

part of the consideration for the sale of Atos 

Singapore Pte Ltd. 

    

 

 

NOTE 25:  SHARE BASED PAYMENTS 

There are no share-based payment arrangements existing at 30 June 2012: 

Included under employee benefits expense in the income statement is $nil (2011: $nil) 

No shares were issued during the year that were granted as compensation (2011: nil). 

 

NOTE 26: EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE 

 

The Company concluded an Entitlement Offer, announced on 25 May 2012, to raise approximately $141,815.  51 

shareholders contributed $48,929.  The underwriter initially agreed to provide the entire shortfall of $92,885.16.  A sequence 

of unforeseen adverse circumstances subsequently made it impossible for the underwriter to honour this commitment.  On 28 

September 2012, ATW concluded an agreement with Fitgenes to place the entire shortfall with Fitgenes.  This placement has 

now been executed. 

There has been no other significant after reporting date events. 

 

 

 Consolidated Group 

 Note 2012 

$ 

2011 

$ 

 

NOTE 27: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS   

Transactions between related parties are on normal commercial terms 

and conditions no more favourable than those available to other 

parties unless otherwise stated. 

    

Transactions with related parties:     

(ii) Key Management Personnel     

 Deposit received for sale of Medec International Pty Ltd     

 - Ananada Rajah  164,500 70,000  

 Consulting fee paid to a related entity of Robert Marr     

 - Fitgenes Pty Ltd  5,000 -  

 

F
or

 p
er

so
na

l u
se

 o
nl

y



ATW HOLDINGS Limited ABN 85 100 531 191 and Controlled Entities 

- 46 -  

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012 

 

NOTE 28: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT  

a. Financial Risk Management Policies 

 The group’s financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks, local money market instruments, short-

term investments, accounts receivable and payable, loans to and from subsidiaries, bank loans, leases and hire 

purchases. 

 The main purpose of non-derivative financial instruments is to raise finance for group operations. 

 i. Treasury Risk Management 

  Senior executives of the Group meet on a regular basis to analyse financial risk exposure and to evaluate 

treasury management strategies in the context of the most recent economic conditions and forecasts. 

  The committee’s overall risk management strategy seeks to assist the consolidated group in meeting its 

financial targets, whilst minimising potential adverse effects on financial performance. 

  The finance committee operates under policies approved by the board of directors.  Risk management 

policies are approved and reviewed by the Board on a regular basis.  These include the use of credit risk 

policies and future cash flow requirements. 

 ii. Financial Risk Exposures and Management 

  The main risks the group is exposed to through its financial instruments are liquidity risk and credit risk. 

  Liquidity risk 

  The group manages liquidity risk by monitoring forecast cash flows and ensuring that adequate unutilised 

borrowing facilities are maintained. 

  Credit risk 

  The maximum exposure to credit risk, excluding the value of any collateral or other security, at balance date 

to recognised financial assets, is the carrying amount, net of any provisions for impairment of those assets, 

as disclosed in the statement of financial position and notes to the financial statements. 

  There are no material amounts of collateral held as security at 30 June 2012.  

  Credit risk is managed on a group basis and reviewed regularly by senior executives.  It arises from 

exposures to customers as well as through certain derivative financial instruments and deposits with 

financial institutions. 

  The senior executives monitor credit risk by actively assessing the rating quality and liquidity of counter 

parties: 

  — only banks and financial institutions with an ‘A’ rating are utilised; 

  — all potential customers are rated for credit worthiness taking into account their size, market position 

and financial standing; and 

  — customers that do not meet the group’s strict credit policies may only purchase in cash or using 

recognised credit cards. 

    

  The credit risk for counterparties included in trade and other receivables at 30 June 2012 is detailed below: 

   Consolidated Group 

    2012 

$ 

2011 

$ 

 

  Trade receivables     

  Counterparties not rated  - 1,186  

  Total  - 1,186  

   

  The consolidated group does not have any material credit risk exposure to any single receivable or group of 

receivables under financial instruments entered into by the consolidated group. 

  Price risk 

  The group is not materially exposed to commodity price risk. 
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NOTE 28: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D) 

b. Maturities of financial liabilities 

 The tables analyse the group’s and the parent entity’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their 

contractual maturities of all non-derivative financial liabilities.  The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual 

undiscounted cash flows.  

  

Contractual maturities 

of financial liabilities 

Less than 

6 months 

6 – 12 

months 

Between 

1 and 2 

years 

Between 

2 and 5 

years 

Over 5 

years 

Total 

contractual 

cash flows 

Carrying 

Amount 

 

Group – at 30 June 2012 $ $ $ $ $ $ $  

Trade and sundry payables 308,467 - - - - 308,467 308,467  

 308,467 - - - - 308,467 308,467  

         

Contractual maturities 

of financial liabilities 

Less than 

6 months 

6 – 12 

months 

Between 

1 and 2 

years 

Between 

2 and 5 

years 

Over 5 

years 

Total 

contractual 

cash flows 

Carrying 

Amount 

 

Group – at 30 June 2011 $ $ $ $ $ $ $  

Trade and sundry payables 155,514 - - - - 155,514 155,514  

 155,514 - - - - 155,514 155,514  

         

Aggregate fair values and carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities at balance date. 

   

 2012 2011 

Consolidated Group Carrying 

Amount 

$ 

Fair Value 

$ 

Carrying 

Amount 

$ 

Fair Value 

$ 

Financial Assets     

Cash  61,649 61,649 178,862 178,862 

Loans and receivables 7,921 7,921 355,676 355,676 

 69,570 69,570 534,538 534,538 

Financial Liabilities     

Trade & sundry payables 308,467 308,467 155,514 155,514 

 308,467 308,467 155,514 155,514 

     

The carrying amounts of assets and liabilities on the Consolidated Group statement of financial position approximate their fair 

values.  
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NOTE 28: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D) 

Fair value hierarchy 

As of 1 July 2009, the Group has adopted the amendment to AASB 7 Financial Instruments:  Disclosures which requires 

disclosure of fair value measurements by level of the following fair value measurement hierarchy: 

 

(i) quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identified assets or liabilities (level 1) 

(ii)  inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (as prices) 

or indirectly (derived from prices) (level 2) , and  

(iii) inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market value (unobservable inputs) (level 3). 

 

At 30 June 2012, the Group do not have any financial instrument measured and recognised at fair value.   

 

 

c. Sensitivity Analysis 

  Interest Rate Risk, Foreign Currency Risk and Price Risk 

  The group has performed sensitivity analysis relating to its exposure to interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and 

price risk at reporting date.  This sensitivity analysis demonstrates the effect on the current year results and equity 

which could result from a change in these risks. 

  Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis 

  At 30 June 2012, the group is not materially exposed directly to fluctuations in interest rates.  The effect on profit 

and equity as a result of changes in the interest rate, with all other variables remaining constant would be as 

follows: 

   Consolidated Group 

    2012 

$ 

2011 

$ 

 

  Change in profit     

  — Increase in interest rate by 1%  - (170)  

  — Decrease in interest rate by 1%  - 170  

  Change in equity     

  — Increase in interest rate by 1%  - (170)  

  — Decrease in interest rate by 1%  - 170  

   

  Foreign Currency Risk Sensitivity Analysis 

  As at 30 June 2012, the group is not exposed directly to fluctuations in foreign currency. Accordingly, there is no 

material quantifiable change in profit or equity as a result of fluctuations in exchange rates.   

   

  Price Risk Sensitivity Analysis 

  As at 30 June 2012, the group is not exposed directly to fluctuations in commodity prices. Accordingly, there is no 

material quantifiable change in profit or equity as a result of fluctuations in commodity prices. 

  The above interest rate, foreign exchange rate and price risk sensitivity analysis has been performed on the 

assumption that all other variables remain unchanged. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012 

 

NOTE 29: PARENT COMPANY INFORMATION 

 

Parent Entity 

    2012 

$ 

2011 

$ 

 

  Assets     

  Cash   61,649 178,862  

  Trade and other receivables  7,921 355,676  

  Property, plant & equipment  1,344 2,150  

  Financial assets  - -  

  Other assets  17,709 7,900  

    88,623 544,588  

  Liabilities     

  Trade and sundry payables  308,467 155,514  

  Deferred tax liabilities  - 9,557  

    308,467 165,071  

 

  Equity     

  Issued capital  20,639,490 20,639,490  

  Reserves  339,005 339,005  

  Accumulated losses  (21,198,339) (20,598,978)  

    (219,844) 379,517  

 

  Financial Performance     

  Profit/(loss) for the year  (599,361) 1,364,390  

  Other comprehensive income  - -  

    (599,361) 1,364,390  

 

(i) The parent entity had no material contingent assets or contingent liabilities at 30 June 2012 other than those disclosed 

at Note 26. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012 

 

NOTE 30: NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS NOT YET ADOPTED 

 
Reference Title Nature of Change Application 

date of 
standard 

Impact on ATW’s 
financial 
statements 

Application 
date for 
ATW 

AASB 9 
(issued 
December 
2009 and 
amended 
December 
2010)  

Financial 
Instruments 

Amends the requirements 
for classification and 
measurement of financial 
assets. The available-for-
sale and held-to-maturity 
categories of financial 
assets in AASB 139 have 
been eliminated. 

 

AASB 9 requires that gains 
or losses on financial 
liabilities measured at fair 
value are recognised in 
profit or loss, except that 
the effects of changes in 
the liability’s credit risk 
are recognised in other 
comprehensive income. 

 

Periods 
beginning on or 
after 1 January 
2015 

Adoption of AASB 9 
is only mandatory 
for the year ending 
30 June 2016. The 
Group has not yet 
made an assessment 
of the impact of 
these amendments. 

 

1 July 2015 

AASB 10 
(issued August 
2011) 

Consolidated 
Financial 
Statements 

Introduces a single ‘control 
model’ for all entities, 
including special purpose 
entities (SPEs), whereby all 
of the following conditions 
must be present: 

 Power over investee 
(whether or not power 
used in practice) 

 Exposure, or rights, to 
variable returns from 
investee 

 Ability to use power over 
investee to affect the 
Group’s returns from 
investee. 

 Introduces the concept of 
‘defacto’ control for 
entities with less than 
50% ownership interest in 
an entity, but which have 
a large shareholding 
compared to other 
shareholders.  This could 
result in more instances 
of control and more 
entities being 
consolidated. 

Annual reporting 
periods 
commencing on 
or after 1 
January 2013 

When this standard 
is first adopted for 
the year ended 30 
June 2014, there 
will be no impact on 
transactions and 
balances recognised 
in the financial 
statements because 
the Group does not 
have any special 
purpose entities. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The ‘Entity’ does 
not have ‘defacto’ 
control of any 
entities with less 
than 50% ownership 
interest in an 
entity. 

1 July 2013 

AASB 11 
(issued August 
2011) 

Joint 
Arrangements 

Joint arrangements will be 
classified as either ‘joint 
operations’ (where parties 
with joint control have 
rights to assets and 
obligations for liabilities) or 
‘joint ventures’ (where 
parties with joint control 
have rights to the net assets 
of the arrangement). 

 

Annual reporting 
periods 
commencing on 
or after 1 
January 2013 

When this standard 
is first adopted for 
the year ended 30 
June 2014, there 
will be no impact on 
transactions and 
balances recognised 
in the financial 
statements because 
the Group has not 
entered into any 
joint arrangements. 

 

1 July 2013 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012 

 

NOTE 30: NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS NOT YET ADOPTED (CONT’D) 

 

AASB 12 
(issued August 
2011) 

Disclosure of 
Interests in 
Other Entities 

 

Combines existing 
disclosures from AASB 127 
Consolidated and Separate 
Financial Statements, AASB 
128 Investments in 
Associates and AASB 131 
Interests in Joint Ventures. 
Introduces new disclosure 
requirements for interests 
in associates and joint 
arrangements, as well as 
new requirements for 
unconsolidated structured 
entities. 

Annual reporting 
periods 
commencing on 
or after 1 
January 2013 

As this is a 
disclosure standard 
only, there will be 
no impact on 
amounts recognised 
in the financial 
statements. 
However, additional 
disclosures will be 
required for 
interests in 
associates and joint 
arrangements, as 
well as for 
unconsolidated 
structured entities. 

1 July 2013 

AASB 13 
(issued 
September 
2011) 

Fair Value 
Measurement 

AASB 13 establishes a single 
framework for measuring 
fair value of financial and 
non-financial items 
recognised at fair value in 
the statement of financial 
position or disclosed in the 
notes in the financial 
statements. 

 
Additional disclosures 
required for items measured 
at fair value in the 
statement of financial 
position, as well as items 
merely disclosed at fair 
value in the notes to the 
financial statements.  
 
Extensive additional 
disclosure requirements for 
items measured at fair 
value that are ‘level 3’ 
valuations in the fair value 
hierarchy that are not 
financial instruments 

Annual reporting 
periods 
commencing on 
or after 1 
January 2013 

When this standard 
is adopted for the 
first time for the 
year ended 30 June 
2014, additional 
disclosures will be 
required about fair 
values. 

1 July 2013 

AASB 119 
(reissued 
September 
2011) 

Employee 
Benefits  

Employee benefits expected 
to be settled (as opposed to 
due to settled under current 
standard) wholly within 12 
months after the end of the 
reporting period are short-
term benefits, and 
therefore not discounted 
when calculating leave 
liabilities. Annual leave not 
expected to be used wholly 
within 12 months of end of 
reporting period will in 
future be discounted when 
calculating leave liability. 

Annual periods 
commencing on 
or after 1 
January 2013 

When this standard 
is first adopted for 
30 June 2014 year 
end, annual leave 
liabilities will be 
recalculated on 1 
July 2012 as long-
term benefits 
because they are 
not expected to be 
settled wholly 
within 12 months 
after the end of the 
reporting period. 
This will result in a 
reduction of the 
annual leave 
liabilities recognised 
on 1 July 2012, and 
a corresponding 
increase in retained 
earnings at that 
date 

1 July 2013 
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NOTE 30: NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS NOT YET ADOPTED (CONT’D) 

 

AASB 2010-8 
(issued 
December 
2010) 

Amendments to 
Australian 
Accounting 
Standards – 
Deferred Tax: 
Recovery of 
Underlying 
Assets (AASB 
112) 

For investment property 
measured using the fair 
value model, deferred tax 
assets and liabilities will be 
calculated on the basis of a 
rebuttable presumption that 
the carrying amount of the 
investment property will be 
recovered through sale. 

Periods 
commencing on 
or after 1 
January 2012 

The Group does not 
have any investment 
property measured 
using the fair value 
model. There will 
therefore be no 
impact on the 
financial statements 
when these 
amendments are 
first adopted. 

 

1 July 2012 

AASB 2011-4 
(issued July 
2011) 

Amendments to 
Australian 
Accounting 
Standards to 
Remove 
Individual Key 
Management 
Personnel 
Disclosure 
Requirements 

Amendments to remove 
individual key management 
personnel (KMP) disclosure 
requirements from AASB 124 
to eliminate duplicated 
information required under 
the Corporation Act 2001 

Annual periods 
commencing on 
or after 1 July 
2013 

When this standard 
is first adopted for 
the year ended  30 
June 2014 the 
Group will show 
reduced disclosures 
under Key 
Management 
Personnel note to 
the financial 
statements 

1 July 2013 

AASB 2011-9 
(issued 
September 
2011) 

Amendments to 
Australian 
Accounting 
Standards - 
Presentation of 
Items of Other 
Comprehensive 
Income 

Amendments to align the 
presentation of items of 
other comprehensive 
income (OCI) with US GAAP.  

Various name changes of 
statements in AASB 101 as 
follows: 

 1 statement of 
comprehensive income 
– to be referred to as 
‘statement of profit or 
loss and other 
comprehensive income’ 

 2 statements – to be 
referred to as 
‘statement of profit or 
loss’ and ‘statement of 
comprehensive 
income’. 

 OCI items must be 
grouped together into 
two sections: those 
that could subsequently 
be reclassified into 
profit or loss and those 
that cannot. 

 

Annual periods 
commencing on 
or after 1 July 
2012 

When this standard 
is first adopted for 
the year ended 30 
June 2013, there 
will be no impact on 
amounts recognised 
for transactions and 
balances for 30 June 
2013 (and 
comparatives). 

1 July 2012 
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NOTE 30: NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS NOT YET ADOPTED (CONT’D) 

 

Interpretation 
20 (issued 
November 
2011) 

Stripping Costs 
in the 
Production 
Phase of a 
Surface Mine 

Clarifies that costs of 
removing mine waste 
materials (overburden) to 
gain access to mineral ore 
deposits during the 
production phase of a mine 
must be capitalised as 
inventories under AASB 102 
Inventories if the benefits 
from stripping activity is 
realised in the form of 
inventory produced. 
Otherwise, if stripping 
activity provides improved 
access to the ore, stripping 
costs must be capitalised as 
a non-current, stripping 
activity asset if certain 
recognition criteria are 
met. 

Annual periods 
commencing on 
or after 1 
January 2013 

The Group does not 
operate a surface 
mine. There will 
therefore be no 
impact on the 
financial statements 
when this 
interpretation is 
first adopted. 

 

1 July 2013 

AASB 2012-5 
(issued June 
2012) 

Annual 
Improvements 
to Australian 
Accounting 
Standards 2009-
2011 Cycle 

Non-urgent but necessary 
changes to IFRSs (IAS1, IAS 
16 & IAS 32) 

Periods 
commencing on 
or after 1 
January 2013 

When this standard 
is first adopted for 
the year ended 30 
June 2013, there 
will be no material 
impact. 

I July 2013 

IFRS (issued 
December 
2011) 

Mandatory 
Effective Date 
of IFRS 9 and 
Transition 
Disclosures 

Entities are no longer 
required to restate 
comparatives on first time 
adoption. Instead, 
additional disclosures on 
the effects of transition are 
required.   

Annual reporting 
periods 
commencing on 
or after 1 
January 2015 

As comparatives are 
no longer required 
to be restated, 
there will be no 
impact on amounts 
recognised in the 
financial 
statements. 
However, additional 
disclosures will be 
required on 
transition, including 
the quantitative 
effects of 
reclassifying 
financial assets on 
transition.   

1 July 2015 

 

NOTE 31: COMPANY DETAILS 

 

The registered office of the company is: 

 C/- Cimetta & Assoc 

10 Bowman Street 

 SOUTH PERTH  WA  6151 

 

The principal place of business is: 

 — ATW Holdings Limited 

C/- Cimetta & Assoc 

10 Bowman Street 

SOUTH PERTH  WA  6151 
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